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          1  PARKS, RECREATION, CULTURAL AFFAIRS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: I welcome you

          3  this morning to the City Council. This is our

          4  Committee on Parks, Recreation, Cultural Affairs and

          5  International Intergroup Relations. My name is

          6  Wendell Foster.

          7                 At today's hearing we are going to

          8  consider five proposed local laws:

          9                 Intro. No. 360, by Council Members

         10  McCaffrey and Abel, would name a playground at

         11  Torsney Park in Queens as the Lou Lodati Playground.

         12                 Intro. No. 476, by Council Members

         13  Freed and Abel, would name the Peck Slip portion of

         14  the East River Bikeway/Walkway in Manhattan as Jerry

         15  Driscoll Walk.

         16                 Intro. NO. 507, by Council Members

         17  Golden, Berman, Dear and Abel, would rename

         18  Satellite Park in Brooklyn as Lieutenant Joseph

         19  Pertrosino Park.

         20                 Intro. No. 526, by Council Members

         21  Espada and Abel, would rename a portion of

         22  Longfellow Avenue near the 41st Police Precinct in

         23  the Bronx as Peace Officer's Memorial Lane.

         24                 Intro. No. 530, by Council Members

         25  Lasher and Abel, by request of the Brooklyn Borough
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          2  President, would name the bandshell in Brooklyn's

          3  Asser Levy Park as the Sidney Jonas Bandshell.

          4                 Each one of these five proposed local

          5  laws is supported by the Community Board within

          6  which these sites are located.

          7                 Let me say that I welcome you here

          8  this morning, and we are in budget hearings so you

          9  will see our members coming in and out.

         10                 The purpose of renaming streets is

         11  simply to recognize that there are streets that some

         12  hold significance and some no longer hold the same

         13  significance they did originally. We don't take any

         14  names down, we simply add to existing names. We do

         15  this to recognize people who made outstanding

         16  contributions to the City or to the community in

         17  which they live, and thus, we do this.

         18                 It is unusual for us just to have a

         19  hearing to name streets, but today is one of those

         20  hearings.

         21                 Having said that, let us now hear

         22  Intro. No. 360, by Council Members McCaffrey and

         23  Abel.

         24                 Mr. McCaffrey.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: Yes, Mr.
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          2  Chairman. Thank you very much --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Excuse my

          4  manners. Let me first identify the Council Members

          5  present. To my extreme left, sitting with me up here

          6  is Council Member Espada. To his right is Council

          7  Member McCaffrey and to my left is Council Member

          8  Lasher and others are downstairs.

          9                 Would you ring the bell downstairs,

         10  please.

         11                 Now, Council Member McCaffrey, will

         12  you forgive me.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: Thank you

         14  very much, Mr. Chairman. I apologize, our two

         15  witnesses now have been learning the bureaucratic

         16  maze of trying to get into City Hall, and I

         17  apologize for them. But in their absence --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Would you like to

         19  wait a little while?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: No, no,

         21  that is quite all right. We have chairs meeting

         22  soon.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Thank you.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: Let me just

         25  speak on behalf of Lou Lodati, who many of us knew
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          2  affectionately in Sunnyside as the Mayor of

          3  Woodside. Mr. Lodati was one of those people who for

          4  half a century marked his involvement on behalf of

          5  the community and particularly on behalf of the

          6  youth of the community. In a host of roles he helped

          7  to establish community organizations for the youth

          8  of the community, the Sunnyside Drum Corps. He was

          9  someone who for many years sought to see to it that

         10  we had an expansion in terms of park space for

         11  children in the area. He was someone who was very,

         12  very active when I first came into office in calling

         13  for the reconstruction of Torsney Park, and again

         14  this is something that as a result of his endeavors

         15  we were able to successfully include in the capital

         16  budget.

         17                 He was someone who always gave of his

         18  time on behalf of the community in general. He was a

         19  businessman who for many years was known within the

         20  business community of Queens and someone who was

         21  truly a very, very distinguished figure.

         22                 Queens Community Board No. 2

         23  unanimously approved a recommendation to the Council

         24  urging that we name the playground within Torsney

         25  Park on behalf of Lou Lodati to be able to
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          2  memorialize his wonderful record of public service

          3  and I would ask for your favorable consideration and

          4  that of the members.

          5                 Thank you very much.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Thank you very

          7  much.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: Mr.

          9  Chairman, I would ask for your indulgence, we have

         10  one witness who has come through the door, who if we

         11  might be able to call to the witness stand.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Would you come to

         13  my right, please, and take a seat there. Tell us who

         14  you are and why you don't like Councilman McCaffrey.

         15                 We have been joined by Council Member

         16  Provenzano from the Bronx and Council Member Linares

         17  from Manhattan.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: Perfect

         19  timing.

         20                 MS. GAVIN: I am sorry I am late. That

         21  renovation is coming beautifully, but --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: Yes.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Please just

         24  identify yourself for the record.

         25                 MS. GAVIN: Yes. I am Lillian Gavin. I
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          2  am the owner of Daisy's Restaurant, and I am here on

          3  behalf of a very, very dear friend and someone that

          4  made a difference in our community. I am also the

          5  Chair of the Sunnyside Chamber of Commerce.

          6                 Louie Lodati was a very dear friend,

          7  but made a difference in Sunnyside with so many

          8  different things. By instilling us with work in the

          9  community, projects such as Gowanus, Sunnyside Drum

         10  Corps., past president of the Chamber of Commerce,

         11  and he was one of them that started the Sunnyside

         12  Drum Corps., which is one of our best drum corps in

         13  the State of New York. He also, every holiday worked

         14  with the seniors, every Valentines Day, in a little

         15  church in our community, he did a day for the

         16  seniors. So, now Sunnyside Senior Center is one of

         17  our best senior centers in the community.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: In other words,

         19  you are in favor?

         20                 MS. GAVIN: Yes, very much so.

         21                 He was a wonderful man that instilled

         22  in a lot of people in the community for doing work

         23  in our community what it means to better a

         24  community. He was one of the founders of also Flag

         25  Day in our community. Every year during the July 4th
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          2  holiday we would have a parade and we celebrate our

          3  flag. Now, Mr. Lodati was an immigrant, he came from

          4  Italy, as a young man, and made a difference in

          5  America. And he had a lot of people working with him

          6  and had them to be part of this community and know

          7  what it is to give back to the community.

          8                 He has done a lot. He received the

          9  Hickson Award from the Gowanus as a very devoted and

         10  distinguished man in Sunnyside.

         11                 As I said, he was past president of

         12  the Sunnyside Chamber for many years, possibly 12 to

         13  15 years he kept Sunnyside Chamber alive, and he has

         14  been known, and not to take anything away from our

         15  Mayor, but as Mr. Sunnyside, Mayor of Sunnyside, so

         16  he has always had that title, and I can think of

         17  numerous things that he did for the community, but

         18  many times every year he would do a picnic. He would

         19  also run fundraisers and donate monies to the Drum

         20  Corps., and also to the senior center. He did so

         21  many different things that, you know, I can't think

         22  of one thing that he didn't do, he was constantly

         23  devoting his life for 50 years.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: What you are

         25  saying is that he is deserving of this honor; is
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          2  that correct?

          3                 MS. GAVIN: Yes. One thing that he did

          4  love was parks. His dream was to have a park for the

          5  children. And that was something that he never was

          6  able to get a ballfield, but parks and children were

          7  one of his priorities. So, for that I am here today.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: All right, thank

          9  you very much.

         10                 MS. GAVIN: And I thank you for your

         11  time, gentlemen.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: Thank you

         13  very much.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Are there any

         15  other questions for this witness?

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: Thank you

         17  very much, Mr. Chairman, for allowing us to come

         18  before you today.

         19                 MS. GAVIN: Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: My pleasure.

         21                 At this time we are going to --

         22  Council Member Freed is not here, so with your

         23  indulgence I will have Council Member Golden do 507

         24  at this time, please.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: Yes.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Those persons

          3  desiring to testify on behalf of this Intro. 507,

          4  Lieutenant Joseph Petrosino Park, you may come

          5  before the witness, Council Member Golden. Just take

          6  a seat there.

          7                 Mr. Golden, please.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: Thank you, Mr.

          9  Chair.

         10                 Joseph Petrosino was the first

         11  Italian American Police Officer to serve in the City

         12  of New York and he was born in Italy, August 30th,

         13  1860. Mr. Petrosino was a shoeshiner, when to the

         14  City Department of Sanitation and rose to the ranks

         15  of a supervisor and at that point he was a -- the

         16  Police Department was the lead agency over the

         17  Department of Sanitation, and he later became a New

         18  York City Police Officer.

         19                 He became the head of the Italian

         20  Division for which would investigate organized crime

         21  in the City of New York. He went on to be the

         22  lieutenant and the commanding officer of that branch

         23  and started the organized crime task force, as we

         24  know it today.

         25                 His many arrests and convictions led
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          2  to may deportations, and it led to changing the

          3  quality of life for many of the people that lived in

          4  the City of New York that came from Italy that were

          5  scared and intimidated and coerced by then known as

          6  the"black hand" or organized crime.

          7                 He would later go to Italy as an

          8  undercover police officer where he was assassinated

          9  and killed and he was the first Italian police

         10  officer, and the first police officer, as a matter

         11  of fact, killed in a foreign land while working for

         12  the City of New York as a police officer.

         13                 He had done many great things for our

         14  communities. He is a leader and well admired within

         15  the Italian community and today gives us the

         16  opportunity to name this park after him and for his

         17  family who are still alive and still reside here in

         18  Bayridge, in Dyker Heights and Bensonhurst and in

         19  New York City, and I would like the privilege of

         20  listening to right now a gentleman that is the head

         21  of an Italian conservative club in Brooklyn and a

         22  fine man himself.

         23                 John Mustaro.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Thank you, Mr.

         25  Golden.
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          2                 Identify yourself for the record,

          3  please, and begin your testimony.

          4                 MR. MUSTARO: Sure. My name is John

          5  Mustaro. I live in Brooklyn, I am the President of

          6  the Italian American Conservative Club.

          7                 I have some things to add to the

          8  Councilman's testimony about Joseph Petrosino. He

          9  was indeed the first officer of Italian descent in

         10  the New York City Police Department. He rose to the

         11  level of Lieutenant. He was the first, in this

         12  country, in fact, he was the first Italian American

         13  to rise to the level of, to rise to that level in

         14  any major Police Department in New York City or the

         15  United States.

         16                 He was also the founder of the Bomb

         17  Squad. The Bomb Squad that exists today was founded

         18  by Lieutenant Petrosino, and the reason that came

         19  about is because in those days extorsion was, bombs

         20  were a chief tool of extortionists so he founded the

         21  Bomb Squad to tackle that.

         22                 He also was a master of disguises and

         23  he would infiltrate the mob in those days, using

         24  many disguises, as a peddler, as one of them, and he

         25  would get away with it many times.
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          2                 They passed a law in 1907, a federal

          3  law which passed, whereby we were allowed to deport

          4  criminals from this country, if we could prove that

          5  they had criminal records prior to coming here, but

          6  there was a three-year statute of limitations on

          7  that law. So the New York City Police Department

          8  came up with a plan to send Joe Petrosino to Italy

          9  to research the past histories of criminals. And

         10  this was the beginning of the end for Joe Petrosino

         11  because now most of the mafia people feared him and

         12  had the opportunity to get him and they did.

         13                 He was supposed to be on an

         14  undercover mission when he went there, but another

         15  interesting quirk of fate happened back then.  The

         16  Police Commissioner in those days was an elected

         17  official, and he sought some publicity so he leaked

         18  the story out, so the fact that Petrosino was in

         19  Italy was supposed to be a secret, but it wasn't.

         20  And as a result, in March of 1909 he was

         21  assassinated in Palermo, Sicily. A month later they

         22  had a funeral for him in New York City, and to give

         23  you an idea of the respect that the man had, they

         24  declared a holiday in New York City, everything was

         25  closed, and in my lifetime I don't remember this
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          2  ever happened. But there were 20,000 people who

          3  filed past his place, he lived at 233 Lafayette

          4  Street in Lower Manhattan and that is where the

          5  funeral was. And another 200,000 lined the streets

          6  for his funeral, which took his body over to Cavalry

          7  Cemetery in Queens.

          8                 A couple of other interesting things

          9  about Petrosino, he actually warned President

         10  McKinley that he was going to be assassinated. One

         11  of the assignments that he had was to seek out

         12  anarchists in this country, and he went undercover

         13  in New Jersey, in Paterson, New Jersey, as a

         14  dishwasher, and during the course of that

         15  investigation, he found out that there was a plan to

         16  assassinate the President, and he warned the

         17  President. In fact, if I remember correctly he told

         18  him that the Buffalo Exposition would be the place

         19  to be very, very careful. The President said I have

         20  no enemies, nobody is out to get me, and the rest is

         21  history.

         22                 But in brief, that is the history of

         23  Joseph Petrosino. In the turn of the century he was

         24  probably the most famous Italian American in New

         25  York City. I have many articles from the New York
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          2  Times. He was front page news. He was a bit

          3  flamboyant but he got his job done. He actually was

          4  responsible for between 500 and 1,000 criminals

          5  being deported, executed or put in jail. And as the

          6  Councilman mentioned, his daughter is still alive,

          7  she is 91 years old, she is living in Brooklyn, and

          8  his granddaughter is also alive, she is an assistant

          9  principal in one of the high schools in Brooklyn.

         10                 I thank you for the opportunity to

         11  testify and if you have any questions concerning Lou

         12  Petrosino, I would be happy to answer them.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Thank you for

         14  coming.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: Mr. Chairman?

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Yes.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: One second.

         18                 There is a movie, The Black Hand?

         19                 MR. MUSTARO: That's right. In the

         20  fifties they actually made a movie. It wasn't a very

         21  good movie, but there was a movie called The Black

         22  Hand -- no, the name of the movie was Pay or Die and

         23  it starred Earnest Brognein. It was a Hollywood

         24  movie.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Gene Kelly
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          2  thought it was a great movie, but it was the movie

          3  that gave him his start and made him famous.

          4                 Okay, thank you very much. Any

          5  questions?

          6                 MR. MUSTARO: Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Thank you.

          8                 We have been joined by Council Member

          9  Eristoff in Manhattan, and Council Member Povman

         10  from Queens and our Deputy Borough President from

         11  Brooklyn.

         12                 Thank you very much.

         13                 Mr. Espada, would you tell us about

         14  526 and then we will go to Mr. Lasher's bill.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ESPADA: Thank you very

         16  much, Mr. Chairman. I would like to apologize. I

         17  guess I am a rookie at this, I didn't bring anyone

         18  to testify today, but we will still get through

         19  this.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: That's okay.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ESPADA: It is with

         22  great pride that I am here before you today to speak

         23  in behalf of the renaming of the small strip between

         24  Southern Boulevard and Bruckner Expressway on

         25  Longfellow after Peace Officers Memorial Lane. It
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          2  was the sentiment of the community for a very long

          3  time to want to do something to pay homage to those

          4  who have given the ultimate sacrifice in their lives

          5  in the line of duty for us and for our safety in the

          6  surrounding area around the 41st Precinct.

          7                 And over the last 27 years, we have

          8  had four officers killed in the line of duty, and

          9  other 13 officers who have died performing their

         10  daily duties in the 41st Precinct. And so we felt

         11  that it was appropriate to rename the strip after

         12  those officers in the way of Peace Officers Memorial

         13  Lane. Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Thank you very

         15  much, Council Member.

         16                 Please forgive my - I don't think it

         17  is rudeness, it is just that I forgot, Mr. Frank is

         18  here, and I forgot to mention our support staff. To

         19  my right is the man who keeps us out of trouble

         20  legally, Mr. Pers, and what is your last name,

         21  Frank?

         22                 MR. NEELEY: Neeley.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Frank Neeley from

         24  our support staff. Thank you, gentlemen. Please

         25  forgive my overlooking.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            19

          1  PARKS, RECREATION, CULTURAL AFFAIRS

          2                 Thank you, Mr. Espada.

          3                 Let us now hear from Mr. Lasher.

          4  Council Member Lasher, and our Deputy Borough

          5  President is here as well. Welcome. If you would

          6  like to say something, just come and take the

          7  witness stand.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LASHER: Good morning,

          9  Mr. Chairman.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Good morning.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LASHER: Thank you for

         12  this opportunity to speak on behalf of one of our

         13  great citizens of Brooklyn his name was Sidney

         14  Jonas. He has been probably the most important mover

         15  and shaker within the Parks Department. He

         16  represented as a gatfly to make sure that everything

         17  was proper, that the bandshell went up properly,

         18  that we received funds from the community board.

         19                 Intro. 530, a bill that would rename

         20  the bandshell in Asser Levy Park, which is obviously

         21  in my district, as Sidney Jonas Bandshell.

         22                 Sidney was a long-time resident of

         23  Coney Island, he was very active in all of the

         24  important community affairs, he was a member of the

         25  community board, he had never missed a meeting.
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          2                 However, his passion and commitment

          3  for bringing music to the bandshell at Asser Levy

          4  Park will be what his family, friends and neighbors

          5  will remember him most for.

          6                 Mr. Jonas was instrumental in the

          7  creation of the development of the annual Asser Levy

          8  Park summer concert series. Over the years thousands

          9  of people from the neighborhood and surrounding

         10  communities have enjoyed this tradition of free

         11  family-oriented entertainment largely due to

         12  Sidney's efforts, and I think that what we have seen

         13  in the Asser Levy Park is that thousands of people

         14  from all over Brooklyn, and even outside of that,

         15  come to hear the concert.

         16                 Moreover, Mr. Jonas was directly

         17  responsible for the actualization of the original

         18  bandshell at Asser Levy Park, thereby ensuring a

         19  permanent venue in musical entertainment for the

         20  community at large.

         21                 Throughout Brooklyn he became well

         22  known to the countless music lovers who came out to

         23  the bandshell in Asser Levy Park to enjoy the

         24  results of his devotion and hard work.

         25                 In addition, Sidney gave generously
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          2  of his time and creativity as a founding member of

          3  the Chairman of the Brighton Division of the

          4  Brooklyn Arts and Cultural Association, otherwise

          5  known as BACA.

          6                 He also served as vice president,

          7  cultural chairman of the Oceanfront Coordinating

          8  Council, and as a member of many other civic and

          9  community groups.

         10                 Adding to the list of his

         11  achievements, Mr. Jonas was an original member of

         12  Community Board 13. There he served as chair of its

         13  Parks Committee until his death last November at the

         14  age of 94.

         15                 In the more than 25 years that I have

         16  represented this community as an elected official,

         17  first as State Assemblyman and now as City Council

         18  Member, I came to know Sidney and his lovely wife

         19  Mildred quite well. Sidney's energy and drive to

         20  bring music and culture to our community never waved

         21  throughout his entire life.

         22                 The naming of Asser Levy Park

         23  bandshell in memory of Sidney Jonas will be a

         24  fitting tribute to him for his lifelong dedication

         25  to bring music to our district. And not only should
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          2  I say our district, but probably most of the

          3  district of Brooklyn has received his music.

          4                 With respect, I ask this Committee to

          5  vote favorably on Intro. 530, renaming the bandshell

          6  in Asser Levy Park the Sidney Jonas Bandshell.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Thank you very

          8  much, Council member.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LASHER: Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Deputy Borough

         11  President, we welcome you here, and would you please

         12  identify yourself and begin your testimony?

         13                 MS. GADSON: Thank you very much. Good

         14  morning, Mr. Chairman and members of the Committee.

         15  My name is Jeannette Gadson and I am the Deputy

         16  Borough President of Brooklyn.

         17                 I come before you this morning on

         18  behalf of the Borough President of Brooklyn, the

         19  Honorable Howard Golden.

         20                 I am pleased to be here today to

         21  testify in support of Intro. 530.

         22                 This legislation was introduced by

         23  Council Member Howard Lasher at the request of the

         24  Borough President to honor Mr. Sidney Jonas, an

         25  active and well respected member of the Coney Island
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          2  Community. By dedicating the newly reconstructed

          3  Asser Levy Bandshell in his name.

          4                 The Borough of Brooklyn suffered a

          5  great loss when Mr. Jonas died in November 1998, at

          6  the age of 94. Active until the day he died, he was

          7  a dedicated citizen whose work in Coney Island

          8  community spans 30 years. Using the lessons he

          9  learned as a labor organizer in the early half of

         10  this century, Mr. Jonas played an active role in the

         11  Warbasse Houses Board of Directors, the Brooklyn

         12  Arts Council, and was a member of Community Board

         13  13.

         14                 As the Chair of the Board's Parks

         15  Committee, Mr. Jonas was also a strong advocate for

         16  his communities parks, beaches and boardwalk. He is

         17  most fondly remembered for his devotion for bringing

         18  quality musical programs to the Asser Levy Park

         19  Bandshell.

         20                 Because of his tireless, selfless

         21  efforts, generations of Brooklynites have enjoyed

         22  high quality, free concerts and cultural events in

         23  the heart of Coney Island.

         24                 Community Board 13 recognized Mr.

         25  Jonas' great contributions, when they passed a
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          2  resolution on November 18th, 1998, calling on the

          3  City Council to dedicated the Asser Levy Bandshell

          4  in his memory.

          5                 Borough President Golden concurred

          6  with Community Board 13's resolution, and on

          7  December 14th, 1998, he wrote to Council Member

          8  Howard Lasher asking him to sponsor the appropriate

          9  legislation.

         10                 The newly reconstructed Asser Levy

         11  Bandshell, which was funded by Council Member

         12  Lasher, will be completed in September 1999, on

         13  behalf of Borough President Howard Golden.

         14                 I therefore urge the City Council to

         15  support this resolution in a timely manner to allow

         16  the new bandshell to pay tribute for hard work and

         17  dedicated service of Mr. Sidney Jonas.

         18                 Thank you for this opportunity.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Deputy Borough

         20  President.

         21                 Council members, any comments,

         22  questions?

         23                 Is the gentleman seated next to you

         24  desirous to testify?

         25                 MS. GADSON: No, that is Mark
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          2  Concerta. He is our expert on parks from the Borough

          3  President's Office.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: I see. And you

          5  came to oppose this, right, sir?

          6                 All right, thank you very much. I

          7  figured with the Deputy Borough President there and

          8  Mr. Lasher you would not dare say you oppose it.

          9                 Thank you very much for coming.

         10                 MS. GADSON: Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Thank you, Mr.

         12  Lasher.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LASHER: Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: All right. Next

         15  is by Council Member Freed. I apologize she is not

         16  here, as I said we are in negotiation for budget

         17  hearings and you will see members come in and out.

         18                 Council Member Freed's bill would

         19  rename the Peck Slip portion of the East River

         20  Bikeway/Walkway in Manhattan as Jerry Driscoll Walk.

         21                 There are people here who will

         22  testify. Would you come and take a seat to my right.

         23                 Oh, Council Member Freed is here. You

         24  see the problem with representing this district is

         25  it is so difficult to get here.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Right. Well,

          3  you can't get through the City Hall Park.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: That's right.

          5  Thank you.

          6                 Just take a seat, please, and before

          7  you speak we will hear from Council Member Freed.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Let's see, that

         10  is Mr. Fagin, is that right?

         11                 MR. FAGIN: Yes.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: All right. Mr.

         13  Mahoney and Ms. Sullivan. All right, thank you very

         14  much.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Thank you very

         16  much, Mr. Chair. I want to thank you for calendaring

         17  this. It is really been the consensus of the

         18  downtown community about how important it is that we

         19  name something in favor of Jerimiah, in this case

         20  called Jerry Driscoll. He was I guess a fixture in

         21  the seaport area. Everyone knew where he worked with

         22  a number of different groups. He was kind of an old

         23  salt, he was an author, he had written several books

         24  about what it was like in effect seafaring in New

         25  York, and was involved in the formation of the
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          2  sight-seeing yacht club line. For over 60 years he

          3  owned and piloted tour boats, fishing boats,

          4  commuter boats, tug boats and fuel delivery boats in

          5  the waterways of New York. He really was dedicated

          6  to the fair and open use of New York's waterways. As

          7  I said, he worked with the Seaport Community

          8  Coalition, literally for decades. He was always

          9  there speaking in favor of access to the waterways

         10  in New York, working in the New York Harbor and as I

         11  am sure everyone will tell you, we are really

         12  thrilled about the possibility of renaming this area

         13  of Peck Slip as Jerry Driscoll Walk, and of course I

         14  urge everyone to vote in favor of this.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Forgive my

         17  rudeness, I was simply trying to find out who these

         18  young people are, so we know who you are. We have

         19  some people in the balcony, and if you would just

         20  wait, hold your testimony until we recognize our

         21  future Council members upstairs.

         22                 We are joined this morning by a group

         23  from Sunnyside Park, Mr. McCaffrey is their Council

         24  member, and they are PS 150.

         25                 Who is in charge of them?
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          2                 MS. WONG: Here.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: You are Ms. Wong?

          4                 MS. WONG: Lillian Wong.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: All right, Ms.

          6  Lillian Wong.

          7                 Thank you for bringing your young

          8  people to City Hall, and first, you just heard

          9  speaking the Council member for this district, so it

         10  is through a kind benevolence that we are all here

         11  this morning. You are in a historical building, I am

         12  sure you have been told that, and the Sergeants will

         13  tell you more about it.

         14                 This Committee is a part of the whole

         15  Council. We are the Parks Committee and we are

         16  holding a hearing this morning on street name

         17  changes.

         18                 I guess many young people do as I do

         19  often when I see a street name that is not familiar,

         20  I wonder why that name is there. And young people,

         21  we are here this morning to name and rename some

         22  streets in the City of New York. We are going to

         23  rename one playground and one place that is an area

         24  that is already named.

         25                 What we are doing, or what we will do
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          2  rather, we will not take the existing name down. We

          3  will simply leave that name there and add an

          4  additional name so that people who are presently

          5  alive will get to know something about that person's

          6  neighborhood.

          7                 Council Member Freed just testified

          8  on Driscoll Walk, and now we are going to hear from

          9  other members of that community and they will tell

         10  us why we should rename that portion after the

         11  person, Mr. Driscoll.

         12                 Coming in now is your Council Member,

         13  Council Member McCaffrey. He testified just before

         14  you came in, so I want him to comment, he will give

         15  you an official McCaffrey welcome to City Hall this

         16  morning.

         17                 All right, there is a parent that

         18  works with Council Member Sabini, where is she? All

         19  right. Are you a part of this group too?

         20                 MS. RAPHAEL: Yes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: Council

         22  Member Sabini's Chief of Staff, Ellen Raphael is up

         23  there.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Ellen Raphael.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: Right.
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          2                 Thank you very much. We welcome the

          3  class of PS 150 who has joined us here today from

          4  Sunnyside. This is a wonderful school that we have

          5  had a whole host of joy in seeing over the years do

          6  more and more for our students, they have over the

          7  years excelled very well in our recent report that

          8  we saw, in terms of reading the students have done

          9  very well. We only honored a couple of weeks ago

         10  here in the Chambers a school crossing guard, who

         11  was so brave in behalf of the children at 150. So,

         12  we welcome you today and we thank Reverend Foster,

         13  the Chair of the Parks Committee for pausing in his

         14  deliberations to be able to give welcome. Mr.

         15  Chairman, thank you very much.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Thank you very

         17  much.

         18                 Ms. Wong, is there anything special

         19  that should be said about these children and Mr.

         20  Sabini's Chief of Staff that Mr. McCaffrey did not

         21  cover?

         22                 MS. WONG: No.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Nothing special?

         24  Well, you are special and we applaud you being here

         25  and we thank you for coming. You are free to sit
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          2  through the testimony of our final three witnesses

          3  and then we will vote, and you will see how we vote

          4  and vote to change the street names.

          5                 Now, once we do it here, it then will

          6  go before the full Council to vote on. After they

          7  vote on it in a positive manner, than it is sent to

          8  the Mayor to be signed into law. That is how we work

          9  here.

         10                 MS. WONG: I know this is not the

         11  appropriate Committee, we are hopeful to get the

         12  Project Smart money.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: What kind of

         14  money?

         15                 MS. RAPHAEL: Project Smart, for

         16  computers. The Board of Education Project Smart.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER:  Now I know why

         18  you are Chief of Staff, we can hear you.

         19                 All right, thank you. All right,

         20  well, even though we are not the appropriate

         21  committee, we will also have to vote on that money

         22  as well.

         23                 Thank you for coming.

         24                 We have three witnesses and they will

         25  tell you why they are going to call it Jerry
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          2  Driscoll. It is educational as well, isn't it? And

          3  then we will have our vote.

          4                 Thank you very much.

          5                 Mr. Fagin, you are the first. Unless

          6  you want Ms. Sullivan to be the first to testify? It

          7  doesn't matter?

          8                 MR. FAGIN: I am right here, I might

          9  as well start.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Okay, thank you

         11  very much.

         12                 MR. FAGIN: Mr. Chairman, I am here

         13  representing the Seaport Coalition and speak in

         14  favor of naming the Peck Slip portion of the new

         15  East River Bikeway/Walkway after Jerimiah Driscoll.

         16  We have a placque that we are hoping to erect in his

         17  honor as well. I have a copy of it here, the text of

         18  which I passed out to members of your Committee,

         19  along with a letter from his closest living

         20  relative, Ann O. Driscoll, in favor of the project.

         21                 Mr. Chairman, one of the stories of

         22  the century is the story of how New York City turned

         23  its back on its most prized real estate, the

         24  Manhattan Waterfront. All around Manhattan,

         25  shipping, ferries and fishing fleets once thrived.
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          2  As these industries collapsed, so did the piers that

          3  wranged Manhattan and the businesses that supported

          4  waterborne commerce. Highways were built around the

          5  perimeter of Manhattan that effectively cut off the

          6  public from the water. Change is inevitable but it

          7  is not always for the good.

          8                 However, with the help and guidance

          9  of energetic public spirited people, mistakes often

         10  can be corrected, and Jerry Driscoll was just such

         11  an energetic public-spirited person. He worked

         12  tirelessly to promote waterborne commerce, such as

         13  ferries and tour boats in the New York Harbor.

         14                 He had a crazy vision in the 1940s

         15  that people would pay to circle Manhattan on a boat.

         16  He advocated the rights of all citizens to access

         17  the waterfront, and he was one of the prime movers

         18  in preserving the historic South Street Seaport.

         19                 He did see the South Street Seaport

         20  in which he lived designated an historic district,

         21  and he lived just long enough to see the resurgence

         22  of viable ferry commerce in Lower Manhattan, and he

         23  saw his vision realized.

         24                 As an original partner in the Circle

         25  Line, he made it possible for millions of people to
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          2  enjoy viewing Manhattan from the water.

          3                 The Seaport Community Coalition has

          4  raised funds to pay for the design and installation

          5  of an 18 inch by 18 inch bronze placque honoring

          6  Jerry Driscoll to be erected at the southern most

          7  end of the East River Bikeway/Walkway, just north of

          8  the Fulton Fish Market, across the street from where

          9  Jerry used to live in the historic Meyers Hotel.

         10                 The New York City Economic

         11  Development Corporation, Manhattan Community Board

         12  No. 1 and our Council Member Kathryn Freed, have all

         13  given their support for their project.

         14                 I urge the Committee to approve the

         15  resolution that names this part of the Manhattan

         16  shore line where Jerry spent his final years Jerry

         17  Driscoll Walk, and that calls for a placque to be

         18  erected there in his honor.

         19                 Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Thank you very

         21  much.

         22                 Now, you young people have heard of

         23  the Circle Line that circles the City of New York,

         24  right? For sightseers? We are talking about the man

         25  that was one of the founders of that line this
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          2  morning.

          3                 Would you continue, Mr. Mahoney,

          4  please.

          5                 MR. MAHONEY: My name is Paul Mahoney.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Push the button

          7  so we can hear you, Mr. Mahoney, please?

          8                 MR. MAHONEY: My name is Paul Mahoney,

          9  President of Metropolitan Yacht. I am here to speak

         10  on behalf of the Seaport Coalition.

         11                 Mr. Driscoll was an early visionary

         12  of the South Street area.  In the late sixties and

         13  early seventies, he led a group that had the

         14  foresight to petition the City to save the historic

         15  buildings of South Street and Schimmerhorn Row, and

         16  also was provided the early money to the first group

         17  to get started in what came in the preservation of

         18  South Street. It would be fitting the City and the

         19  Council to name this stretch that Jerry so

         20  tirelessly worked to save in his honor, as he

         21  provided foresight for the area, safety, provided

         22  the inspiration to save the buildings and to work

         23  tirelessly to protect them.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Thank you, Mr.
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          2  Mahoney.

          3                 Ms. Sullivan, please.

          4                 MS. SULLIVAN: Thank you for having

          5  this here. I would like to talk a little bit about,

          6  we are saying Jerry Driscoll, but I love to say

          7  Jerimiah Timothy Driscoll because those names mean

          8  so much to me. Knowing Jerry was a great tribute.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: You are Irish,

         10  aren't you?

         11                 MS. SULLIVAN: About four generations

         12  back.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: I thought so.

         14                 MS. SULLIVAN: It is still there, it

         15  is in my heart. I guess families just do that to us.

         16  But Jerry was, as Irish as he was, he was pure

         17  American.

         18                 Remember, when he came here, he came

         19  here poor. There was no such thing as Medicaid, any

         20  kind of help. They lived just in poverty. But Jerry

         21  rose above that and Jerry's love was the waterfront.

         22  Now, I only knew Jerry in his later years, but he

         23  made me love the waterfront as a member of the

         24  Seaport Coalition.

         25                 Jerry, you felt it, it was a romance
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          2  with him, it was a love, and he wanted everybody

          3  else to see this and be able to envision what the

          4  water, just looking at the water is a calming

          5  effect. Riding on it. Feeling the breeze of it. This

          6  is what Jerry brought to us. And I am asking you and

          7  this body to please name that Peck Slip Jerry

          8  Driscoll Walk. Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Thank you very

         10  much.

         11                 MS. SULLIVAN: I forgot to tell you

         12  one thing.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: All right, tell

         14  us.

         15                 MS. SULLIVAN: If I may. Jerry was

         16  what in Ireland they would say a charnake

         17  (phonetic). A charnake was a storyteller, and that

         18  is what Jerry did for the rivers, he kept telling

         19  everybody about it, and fighting for it, and

         20  incidently, the wrong political people were the

         21  scallowrags (phonetic).

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Thank you.

         23                 MS. SULLIVAN: Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Mr. Fagin. The

         25  photographs that you gave, now this is actually
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          2  where the walk is going to be?

          3                 MR. FAGIN: That's correct, Mr.

          4  Chairman.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Thank you very

          6  much.

          7                 Thank you for testifying. I believe

          8  that is it.

          9                 Roll call, Mr. Sabini. We welcome

         10  your people on your behalf.

         11                 Roll call.

         12                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Foster.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Aye.

         14                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Povman.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER POVMAN: Aye on all.

         16                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Provenzano.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: I would

         18  like to explain my vote.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Yes, you may.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: I vote aye

         21  on all, but I would like to add my name to

         22  Lieutenant Joseph Petrosino Park. I think it is an

         23  amazing story that we heard today. I would like to

         24  thank my colleague, Councilman Golden.

         25                 I would also like to add my name to
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          2  Intro. 526, Councilman Espada's Intro, Peace

          3  Officers Memorial Lane, honoring the Peace Officers

          4  that gave their lives in the 41st Precinct.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Thank you very

          7  much.

          8                 Let me interrupt the roll call one

          9  minute.

         10                 I would like to ask the three in the

         11  back, why was Peck Slip?  What is going to happen to

         12  Mr. Peck and his slip?

         13                 MR. FAGIN: Peck Slip is actually the

         14  area, the street area.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: I know it is an

         16  area.

         17                 MR. FAGIN: It is the area that we are

         18  asking to be named.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: I know. Do we

         20  know anything about why?

         21                 MR. FAGIN: I don't know what name

         22  Peck is after --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Well, I will tell

         24  you what we are going to do, the next time you come

         25  back to testify on behalf of another bill, bring

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            40

          1  PARKS, RECREATION, CULTURAL AFFAIRS

          2  that information if you can, will you please? For no

          3  other reason than one of our Council Members would

          4  like to know.

          5                 Thank you very much. Continue the

          6  roll call.

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Linares.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: I vote aye on

          9  all.

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Eristoff.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Aye.

         12                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Golden.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: Aye on all.

         14  May I be excused to explain my vote?

         15                 I would like to be added to Intros.

         16  360, 476, 526 and 530, and I would like to thank the

         17  witness, John Mustaro, for coming out and for

         18  testifying on behalf of Petrosino Park.

         19                 Thank you, Mr. Chair. Great meeting.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: I would suggest

         21  that we leave, with the permission of the Council

         22  members, leave the vote open, because there are

         23  other members downstairs, and maybe they will come

         24  in later. Is that all right? Okay, thank you.

         25                 Before we close, there is a gentleman
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          2  here that has been asking to speak before our

          3  Committee on issues that are not germane to this

          4  hearing, and I suggested through his own Council

          5  Member or write me a letter and state what it is in

          6  reference to.

          7                 It is not that I don't respect your

          8  right to speak before us, this hearing is for a

          9  specific reason this morning, street name changes,

         10  and that is all we are here on today.

         11                 Thank you for your interest, and

         12  please don't consider our not hearing you as being

         13  rude. All right? That is just one of those things we

         14  have to do occasionally.

         15                 All right, is that it?

         16                 MR. PERS: Yes.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: All right, we

         18  have voted aye on all, so we stand adjourned.

         19                 Thank you very much.

         20                 (Hearing concluded at 10:59 a.m.)

         21
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